#### 2022-2023 UNIVERSITY SENATE MINUTES FOR THE 20 JAN 2023 MEETING

University Senate Officers: Presiding Officer Jennifer Flory, Presiding Officer Elect Rob Sumowski, Secretary Alex Blazer

### **ATTENDANCE**

Members	P denotes Present	A denotes Absent	R denotes Regrets	
Ashley Banks-P	Matt Davis-R	Rui Kang-P	Stephen Rutner-A	
Kevin Blanch-A	Donovan Domingue-P	Alesa Liles-P	Lamonica Sanford-P	
Alex Blazer-P	Hank Edmondson-A	Leng Ling-P	Liz Speelman-R	
Robert Blumenthal-R	Josefina Endere-R	Nadirah Mayweather-R	Costas Spirou-R	
Linda Bradley-P	Kerry James Evans-P	Rebecca Meghani-A	Mariana Stoyanova-R	
Kell Carpenter-P	Jennifer Flory-R	Lorraine Milam-P	Rob Sumowski-P	
Rodica Cazacu-P	Brad Fowler-P	Matthew Milnes-P	John Swinton-P	
Mikkel Christensen-P	Catherine Fowler-P	Lyndall Muschell-P	Sandra Trujillo-A	
Benjamin Clark-P	Damian Francis-R	Sarah Myers-P	James Welborn-P	
Kaitlin Congdon-P	Greg Glotzbecker-P	Jinkyung Park-P	Benjamin Whittle-P	
Cathy Cox-P	Gail Godwin-P	Amy Pinney-P	Diana Young-A	
Nicholas Creel-P	Sabrina Hom-P	Frank Richardson-A		
Paulette Cross-R	Stephanie Jett-P	Peter Rosado-R		
Guests	Role on University Senate or Position at the University			
A. Kay Anderson	Assistant Vice President for Enrollment Management and University			
	Registrar			
Jim Berger	Director, Center for Teaching and Learning			
Rhonda Griffin	Administrative Assistant of the Office of the Provost and			
	Administrative Assistant of the 2022-2023 University Senate			
Susan Kerr	Chief Information Officer and Member of the 2022-2023 RPIPC			
Joyce Norris-Taylor	Assistant Professor of Nursing and Member of the 2022-2023 SAPC			

<u>CALL TO ORDER</u> Rob Sumowski, Presiding Officer Elect of the 2022-2023 University Senate, called the meeting to order at 3:31 p.m.

<u>CONSENT AGENDA</u> A consent agenda was available as an item of business listed on the meeting agenda and read as follows.

#### 1. AGENDA/MINUTES

- a. University Senate Meeting Agenda (01/20/2023)
- b. University Senate Meeting Minutes (11/18/2022)

A <u>MOTION</u> to adopt the consent agenda was approved by voice vote with no proposed extractions, no further discussion, no dissenting voice, and only voting members of the university senate eligible to vote.

**UNFINISHED BUSINESS** There was no unfinished business.

### **NEW BUSINESS**

1. <u>Motion 2223.CON.002.O Revised Slate of Nominees 2022-2223 (Jan. 2023)</u> On behalf of the committee, Rob Sumowski, SCoN Chair, presented to the motion "To endorse the

revised slate of nominees for the 2022-2023 University Senate as proposed in the supporting documents.

- a. <u>SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS</u> Supporting documentation was available in the online motion database: <u>https://senate.gcsu.edu/motions/revised-slate-nominees-2022-2023-jan-2023-01072023</u>.
  - i. <u>Slate of Nominees 2022-2023 111522.pdf</u>
  - ii. <u>Summary of Revisions to the University Senate and Committees</u> <u>111522.docx</u>
  - iii. <u>SCoN Bylaws Compliance (2022-11-15).docx</u>
- b. <u>**CONTEXTUAL INFORMATION**</u> Kell Carpenter replaces Jessamyn Swan as elected faculty member serving on DEIPC.
- c. **<u>DISCUSSION</u>** When Rob Sumowski called for questions and comments, none were made.
- d. SENATE ACTION
  - i. A <u>MOTION</u> to the approve the revised slate of nominees was made, seconded, and <u>APPROVED</u> by voice vote, no further discussion, no dissenting voice, and only voting members of the university senate eligible to vote.

#### MOTION 2223.RPIPC.001.R MOTION TO REVIEW AND UPDATE THE GEORGIA <u>COLLEGE PARKING ALLOCATION POLICY</u> On behalf of the committee, Brad Folwer, RPIPC Vice Chair, presented the motion "To endorse the statement in the supporting document as the body of a resolution requesting Review and Update of the GCSU

# Parking Allocation Policy."

- a. <u>SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS</u> Supporting documentation was available in the online motion database: <u>https://senate.gcsu.edu/motions/motion-review-and-update-georgia-college-parking-allocation-policy-01062023</u>.
  - i. Parking Allocation Policy.docx
  - ii. ParkingTransportationPoposal022006\_0-3.doc
  - iii. Pres. Leland announcement of Parking Policy approval 2006.docx
  - iv. Resolution Request for Review and Update of the GCSU Parking Allocation Policy (2023-01-06).docx
  - v. Parking Allocation Policy (2017-04-21).docx
- b. <u>CONTEXTUAL INFORMATION</u> RPIPC reviewed parking policy for several months and communicated with constituents. The Kilpatrick Lot continues to have issues. Since the policy was created in 2006, the committee felt it was time to request Parking & Transporting to review the policy.
- c. <u>**DISCUSSION**</u> When Brad Fowler called for questions and comments, many were forthcoming.
  - i. Question: What is the committee's intent, and what is a successful review?
  - ii. Answer (Vice Chair): Parking is a complicated issue. We don't know what a successful review entails. We do know that faculty are frustrated with parking availability, especially after 9:00 a.m. Students are frustrated as well. There are some solutions, such as the Irwin St Lot, which has many available slots; however, no one wants to park there. Last year, Parking & Transportation offered a shuttle service that only had six passengers per day. It is difficult for the committee to surmise adequate solutions.
  - iii. Question: As a follow up, someone is always going to be unhappy; economists would say, raise the fee. What concerns me is that we're

asking someone else to do the work without a definite aim. We should wait to make the request until we define our goals.

- iv. Answer (Vice Chair): This is a request to review and update. It might be that the office simply reviews and updates.
- v. Question: Is this an internal review performed by Parking & Transportation?
- vi. Answer (Vice Chair): Yes.
- vii. Comment (President Cox): The university is working on revising the Master Plan. An architecture firm will hold focus groups, and we encourage participation. The firm needs to hear from us regarding the parking issue.
- viii. Comment: Parking & Transportation should confer with the architecture firm working on the Master Plan.
  - ix. Comment: Two goals of the review should be how has parking allocation and parking location changed since the creation of the 2006 policy.
  - x. Comment (Vice-Chair): Parking and Transportation has allocation and location change information.
- d. SENATE ACTION
  - i. A <u>MOTION</u> to close debate was made, seconded, and <u>APPROVED</u> by voice vote, with one dissenting voice, one abstention, and only voting members of the university senate eligible to vote.

## PRESIDENT'S REPORT — PRESIDENT CATHY COX

### 1. STATE OF THE UNIVERSITY

- a. The annual State of the University Address will be held on Friday, February 3, at 2:00 PM in Russell Auditorium.
- b. Immediately following the State of the University Address, we will have our annual faculty/staff Service Recognition Ceremony. I encourage you to attend and congratulate your colleagues being recognized for their years of service to the university. A reception will be held after the Service Recognition Ceremony on the lawn in front of Russell Auditorium.

### 2. MODIFIED SUMMER SCHEDULE

- a. Following an in-depth discussion about ways in which we can work to reduce the rising utility costs across campus, especially during the summer months, and exploring a way in which we could offer a little flexibility for work schedules during the summer, the Executive Cabinet approved a campus-wide modified summer schedule beginning Monday, May 8, 2023, as follows:
  - i. Monday-Thursday -- 8:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. with a mandatory half hour lunch.
  - ii. Fridays -- 8:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m., campus offices closed on Friday afternoons.
  - iii. This schedule will remain in place through Friday, August 4, 2023.
  - iv. We will have three state holidays during this time period on May 29, June 19, and July 4. For the weeks Of May 29 & June 19 in which those holidays fall, we will work a four-day work week from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. For the week of July 3<sup>rd</sup>, there will be a campus closure on Monday, July 3 (for which employees will need to take annual leave), and the

observance of the holiday on Tuesday, July 4. We will work Wednesday through Friday 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.

v. This modified schedule will be in effect for all faculty and staff members during this summer period.

# 3. STATE BUDGET & USG UPDATE

- a. There's good and not-so-good news in the FY24 state budget proposal released at the end of last week by Gov. Kemp. The good news: He is proposing a \$2,000 cost-of-living (COLA) pay increase for all state employees, on top of the \$5,000 COLA he proposed and the Legislature approved this past year.
- b. The not-so-good news: The Governor cut the design funds for Herty Hall, along with several other USG projects, from the USG's requested budget. We have, however, been given approval to work with the General Assembly to see if we can get them to add Herty back to the budget when it goes through the House and Senate. So, we are already working on our strategies to try and get that accomplished.
- c. Chancellor Perdue shared the budget presentation he made to the House Appropriations Committee with the Board of Regents at their meeting on Wednesday of this week. He shared with the Legislators the funding challenges the USG had under the 1984 funding formula along with data on how state funding had changed through the years. He suggested to the House members that the USG "would make things work" for the coming year, but would need help in the future.
- d. The Chancellor has created several task force groups among the USG presidents to study and discuss various issues that we have all raised to him. I have been appointed to two of those groups one studying Athletics, and another studying USG policies (as in policies that are too bureaucratic, areas where institutions need more flexibility, etc. dual appointments is one of my pet peeves) so if you have any burning issues you'd like me to raise in these groups, please let me know.
- e. The Regents announced a shuffle of presidents this week, moving Dr. Georj Lewis, the president of Atlanta Metropolitan University, to become the president of Clayton State University, and Dr. Ingrid Sellers-Thompson, the president of South Georgia College, to be the new president of Atlanta Metropolitan University, both changes to be effective February 1. A transition plan for South Georgia College is to be announced soon.

# 4. SPRING COMMENCEMENT CEREMONIES

- a. This Spring we will hold four commencement ceremonies to honor our May and August 2023 graduates. An additional ceremony is being added to allow students the ability to invite more guests to their ceremony; this will be especially important over the next two years as the students who were unable to attend their high school graduations due to the COVID pandemic graduate with their bachelor's degrees. Additionally, we were reaching near-capacity at Centennial Center for our two undergraduate ceremonies.
- b. These ceremonies will be divided by college, and each ceremony will be a combined graduate/undergraduate program.
- c. Ceremony dates and times are:
  - i. College of Health Sciences: Friday, May 5, 2023 at 2:00 PM
  - ii. College of Education: Friday, May 5, 2023 at 7:00 PM
  - iii. College of Business and Technology: Saturday, May 6, 2023 at 9:00 AM

### iv. College of Arts and Sciences: Saturday, May 6, 2023 at 2:00 PM

d. Faculty may attend any ceremony, but they are particularly encouraged to be present for the ceremony honoring their majors. We will also need additional faculty to serve as readers and marshals; please watch for an email from Ms. Kay Anderson, Registrar, about these opportunities.

### 5. <u>CAMPUS UPDATES</u>

- a. Vice President for Student Life Search Provost Costas Spirou has agreed to chair this search. The search process will begin later this semester. We will have an internal search committee in collaboration with an external search firm. More details to follow.
- b. Chief Diversity Officer Search Dr. Dan Nadler, Interim Vice President for Student Life, has agreed to chair this search. We are working now to create the search committee. More details to follow.
- c. Leadership from the College of Arts & Sciences and the Department of Music is working with our Facilities Department on the design of a new band practice building to be located on the corner of Wayne and Montgomery Streets, across from the Miller Gym.
- d. Conservation of the Old Governor's Mansion's exterior stucco is now complete, and work will begin soon on renovations of the modern Education and Gift Store Buildings.
- e. The Andalusia Interpretive Center's exterior is nearing completion and we will be working on the remaining interior finishes in January. Work continues on the new permanent exhibition and the opening of the site's first temporary exhibit. The Ribbon Cutting for the center will be Friday, March 24.
- f. The USG Office called on GCSU VP of Finance and Administration Lee Fruitticher to help our sister institution Gordon State College in a temporary jobsharing role for a six-month period while they conduct searches to fill the Chief Budget Officer, Controller, and other budget/accounting positions. Susan Demmon, our Director of Accounting, is also helping out. Both of them will be spending a day a week or more, as needed, in coming weeks and months to help Gordon State get a handle on its budget, accounting and financial statements.
- 6. <u>HOMECOMING</u> Homecoming festivities are scheduled to begin on Monday, February 13, through Saturday, February 18. This year's theme "Homecoming Y2K" a celebration of Y2K iconography and media/culture. The annual concert will take place later in the spring on March 24. From cheering on the Bobcats in baseball, softball, and basketball during the week, to office decorating competition, announcing the Homecoming Court, and much more, there will be a lot of fun and exciting activities for all ages. For more information, please visit <u>www.gcsu.edu/homecoming</u>.

# 7. SAVE THE DATES

- a. State of the University Address Faculty and Staff Service Recognition Ceremony Friday, February 3, 2023
  2:00 p.m. – Russell Auditorium
- b. *Homecoming* February 13 – 18, 2023 www.gcsu.edu/homecoming
- c. *I* ♥ *GCSU Day* February 14, 2023 Front Campus

- d. *Employee Appreciation Day* Friday, March 3, 2023 Library Patio
- e. Andalusia Interpretive Center Ribbon Cutting Friday, March 24, 2023 Andalusia
- f. GCSU Research Day March 29, 2023
- g. *Spring Faculty/Staff Picnic* Monday, April 10, 2023 Front Campus
- h. *Celebration of Excellence* Friday, April 21, 2023 9:00 a.m. – Russell Auditorium
- i. *Midnight Breakfast* Monday, May 1, 2023 9:45 p.m. - The MAX
- j. Spring Graduate & Undergraduate Commencement Ceremonies: Centennial Center
   College of Health Sciences
   College of Education
   College of Business and Technology
   College of Arts and Sciences
   Friday, May 5, 2023 at 2:00 PM
   Saturday, May 6, 2023 at 9:00 AM
   Saturday, May 6, 2023 at 2:00 PM
- 8. **<u>QUESTIONS</u>** President Cox invited questions from the floor.
  - a. <u>State Budget & USG Update</u>
    - b. <u>Comment</u>: Regarding COLA adjustments, COLA went up 6.5% last year. For the record, \$2,000 comprises a 6.5% COLA adjustment for anyone earning \$33,000 or less.

# PROVOST'S REPORT - PROVOST COSTAS SPIROU

As Provost Costas Spirou had extended *Regrets* and was unable to attend this meeting, President Cox shared highlights from the Provost's Report. The following is the written report submitted by Provost Spirou for inclusion in these minutes.

### 1. COLLEGES AND LIBRARY

# a. <u>College of Arts and Sciences</u>

- i. **Tenure & Promotion Policy** The COAS Dean's Advisory Council is working on merging the new university language on Faculty Evaluation Policies and Procedures with the existing COAS T&P document to create one usable document.
- b. <u>COLLEGE OF BUSINESS AND TECHNOLOGY</u>
  - i. **The Women in Technology Day** is scheduled for Friday, February 24, 2023. Junior and senior high school females are invited to attend a full day conference allowing them to meet professional women in technology fields and our GC WIT students. The young women will participate in a virtual reality experience, learn about GC MIS and CS programs and career opportunities, learn about enterprise software, and compete in an

enterprise system simulation game. Please contact Dr. Joy Godin for more information about the program.

# c. <u>COLLEGE OF EDUCATION</u>

i. **The John H. Lounsbury Distinguished Lecture Series** will take place on Thursday, February 9th at 5:30 pm in Peabody. The speaker will be Carl Glickman, President of the Institute for Schools, Education, and Democracy.

# d. UNIVERSITY LIBRARY

i. 24 Hour Access With the start of the Spring 2023 semester, the first floor and atrium-area of the University Library opened to students for 24-hour access, Sunday through Thursday. With the exception of the day before a holiday, the library will open at 12:00 p.m. on Sunday. At 10:00 p.m., access to the library building will be available by card-swipe only. At 1:00 a.m., the second and third floors of the library will close. The first floor, including the atrium area, will remain open via card swipe access through 7:30 a.m. At 7:30 a.m., visitors will be able to access the library without swiping their card. The second and third floors will open at 8:00 a.m. All floors of the library close at 6:00 p.m. on Friday. On Saturday, all floors of the library open at 10:00 a.m. and close at 6:00 p.m.

# 2. <u>SCHOOLS AND HONORS COLLEGE</u>

# a. THE GRADUATE SCHOOL

- i. Administrative Graduate Assistants The Graduate School is in the process of reviewing 30 requests for Administrative Graduate Assistant allocations for AY 2023-2024 and will be announcing the awards at the end of the month.
- ii. **Recruitment Videos** The Graduate School commissioned the production of a series of program specific new recruitment videos to replace outdated content. The videos will reside on The Graduate School web site and be shared on GC social media pages.

# b. HONORS COLLEGE

- i. Legends of Honors This spring semester, the Honors College is again pleased to feature Legends of Honors Zoom presentations for alumni, students, and friends of the Honors College. Please <u>register</u> to hear from our distinguished alumni:
  - January 25, 6:00p.m. Dorianna Dobson `18, Current 4<sup>th</sup> Year Medical Student at Mercer University School of Medicine, "Seeing the Future in Spit."
  - February 22, 6:00p.m. Dr. Harold Mock, `06, Director of the GCSU Leadership Program and Assistant Professor of History, "Understanding the Troubled U.S.-Russia Relationship: Putin's Russia and the Return of Great-Power Competition."

# c. <u>The School of Continuing and Professional Studies</u>

- i. Andalusia and Georgia's Old Governor's Mansion received a \$5K grant to support general operations from the Warren Foundation.
- ii. **Study Tour** The School of Continuing and Professional Studies is organizing an inaugural Study Tour to Chile in June. This trip will be educational and fun, and is open to all faculty, staff, alumni, and community members. More information can be found

here: <u>https://worldstrides.com/custom/explorechile-georgiacollegestateuni-2023-june/</u>

# 3. OFFICES AND PROGRAMS

# a. <u>GC JOURNEYS</u>

i. The Career Planning Milestones Program had an 85% completion rate for Fall 2022 graduates. At Georgia College, all undergraduate students are expected to complete a set of career planning benchmarks that follow a four-year career planning model. Known as the GC Career Planning Milestones, these benchmarks give students the opportunity to begin planning and preparing for their careers from their day at GC. The milestones provide high-impact, transformative opportunities to prepare students for life after graduation.

## b. <u>THE LEADERSHIP PROGRAMS</u>

i. Usery Forum The Leadership Programs will host General Phillip Breedlove, the 17th Supreme Allied Commander of Europe for NATO, for the next Usery Forum on January 24<sup>th</sup> at 5:00-6:30 in Magnolia Ballroom.

## c. MURACE

Posters at the Georgia State Capitol Organized by Georgia College in collaboration with the Georgia Undergraduate Research Collective, Posters at the Georgia State Capitol will be held in the Capitol rotunda on February 27<sup>th</sup>. A record number of submissions from students around the state (85) was received.

# d. **OFFICE OF ADMISSIONS**

- i. **Completed Applications** According to our most recent data (January 17, 2023), completed applications for Fall 2023 are up +54% when compared with last year (4,892 vs. 3,176). Completed applications from African American students are up +101% compared with last year (331 vs. 165) and completed applications from Latino/Hispanic students are up +67% compared with last year (353 vs. 211).
- ii. Adopt an Admit Program The Office of Admissions successfully launched the Adopt An Admit Program in December. The Office held 3 training sessions with a total of 40 mentor participants made up of faculty and staff. Over 60 admitted African American and Latino students have been assigned an admissions mentor thus far. If you would like to participate, please contact Javier Francisco in the Office of Admissions.
- iii. President's Scholarship Competition Georgia College hosted a successful President's Scholarship Competition on December 2, 2022. This event included the participation of 43 faculty members who served as our interviewers for the competition. Our faculty judges engaged with the attendees and did a fantastic job interviewing them. The Scholarship Committee was able to offer all attendees a scholarship which was 87 scholarship offers for 2023-2024 compared to 79 scholarship offers for 2022-2023. As of today, 43 of the 87 students have deposited which is a 49% yield rate thus far. For the 2022-2023 year, only 20 students had deposited by this date for a 25% yield rate. Scholarship recipients will have until May 1, 2023, to accept our scholarship offers.

# e. OFFICE OF GRANTS & SPONSORED PROJECTS

i. **GCSU Research Day 2023** The Office of Grants & Sponsored Projects (OGSP) will be hosting several events during the upcoming Research Day.

Through these activities, the OGSP will emphasize the role that research plays in a robust undergraduate education while also conveying information about grant opportunities.

# f. OFFICE OF STUDENT SUCCESS & CAREER DEVELOPMENT

i. Launch The Office of Student Success & Career Development launched on January 1, 2023. It combines the Career Center, the Bridge Scholars program, the First Year Experience, and the Learning Center. The reconstituted unit reports to Enrollment Management and is aimed at developing synergies between various areas (Academic Advising, Registrar, Financial Aid, Testing Center, Admissions) to better serve the students and improve retention.

# 4. <u>Centers and Institutes</u>

- a. <u>Andalusia Institute</u>
  - i. **Interpretive Center** The Andalusia Institute received a \$20K grant from the EJ Grassmann Trust in support of the new Interpretive Center.
- b. <u>CENTER OF DESIGN AND E-COMMERCE</u>
  - i. **Merge** The Center of Design and E-Commerce will merge with the Center for Innovation and Entrepreneurship effective July 1, 2023.
- c. <u>Center for Teaching and Learning</u>
  - i. **ChatGPT** Led by the Center of Teaching and Learning, the university will be developing a number of faculty support programs to address concerns with AI (ChatGPT) and the potential use of this technology by students within their assignments. On January 27, 2023 at 2:00pm the CTL will be organizing a panel on the subject that addresses the following:
    - 1. What ChatGPT is and what it can do.
    - 2. How it can be used in higher education.
    - 3. Ways to modify or shift our instruction to improve our student's learning and avoid misuse by our students.
  - ii. **Faculty Learning Communities** The Center of Teaching and Learning will be providing funding to support the development of faculty learning communities. Faculty Learning Communities are small groups of faculty and staff who meet several times during the academic year to discuss, and build community around, a particular issue or approach to teaching and student learning at Georgia College. The Faculty Learning Communities meet approximately every three weeks, either virtually or face-to-face. For more information, please visit the Faculty Learning Communities webpage or send an e-mail to ctl@gcsu.edu or call (478)445-2520.
  - iii. Forum on Working with Post Pandemic Students The Center for Teaching and Learning will host a Forum on Working with Post Pandemic Students—"Challenges and Surprises of Our Changing Student Body" (January 19<sup>th</sup> at 3:30 & January 20<sup>th</sup>at 1:00) in the Pat Peterson Museum Education Room.
- d. **EARLY LEARNING CENTER** 
  - i. **The Montessori Academy** current enrollment is 94 with 62 children on the waitlist. The enrollment has increased by 50% over the last two years.
- e. <u>THE INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION CENTER</u>
  - i. **New Students** The International Education Center welcomed, unusually for Spring semester, eleven new students to campus this month. The students represent seven different nations.

ii. Forty Under 40 Africa A past international student, Michael Ncube, has been nominated for a "Forty Under 40 Africa" award in the Community Development category. After leaving Georgia College in 2021, Michael established a foundation that supports the educational needs of young girls in his home nation of Zimbabwe. Michael is being recognized for his efforts in this area. Ncube came to GC as a State department-sponsored student and has previously noted how valuable the knowledge and experience he gained at GC – including volunteering with Baldwin County Communities in Schools.

# f. SANDRA DUNAGAN DEAL CENTER FOR EARLY LANGUAGE AND LITERACY

i. Research Grant Initiative for Implementation Research to Improve Early Language Literacy Outcomes In early December, The Deal Center funded four grant proposals as part of the center's Research Grant Initiative for Implementation Research to Improve Early Language Literacy Outcomes. Awardees included primary researchers from Augusta University, Kennesaw State University, and Central Savannah River Area Regional Education Services Agency.

# 5. **INITIATIVES AND PROJECTS**

- a. <u>THE NACE FIRST-DESTINATION SURVEY</u> is currently underway. The survey captures information regarding how graduates fare in their careers within six months of graduation. The outcomes reported measure types of employment—full or part time, contract, freelance, and so forth; 2) additional education, e.g., accepted to graduate or professional school; 3) still seeking either employment or further education; 4) and starting salary for those employed full time. In addition to providing outcomes for individual classes, the First-Destination Survey is designed to provide trends data over time to inform the discussion about the value of higher education.
- b. <u>GC THRIVE</u> will be admitting its first cohort of students during Spring 2023. This Inclusive Post-Secondary Education (IPSE) program offers students with intellectual and developmental disabilities (I/DD) a variety of experiences and opportunities for growth as they prepare for the next chapter of their lives. The Department of Continuing and Professional Education is also working with the College of Education on this inclusive certificate program.
- c. <u>THE UNDERREPRESENTED MINORITY FACULTY MENTORING NETWORK</u> launched this semester with a kickoff meeting on January 6th. This new initiative connects underrepresented faculty members with faculty mentors to assist them in formulating a support system to become successfully integrated in the university community. The mentees and mentors hold regular meetings during the semester. This is a joint initiative between the Office of Inclusive Excellence, the Center for Teaching and Learning, and the Office of the Provost.

# 6. <u>CONFERENCES AND MEETINGS</u>

a. MOMENTUM SUMMIT VI is scheduled for January 23-March 10, 2023.

Institutions across the University System of Georgia connect every year to share experiences, learn new strategies, and plan their work for student Momentum for the year ahead. The Momentum Summit V is an opportunity to review and refine the work institutions have committed to, assess progress, and chart a path forward for building upon success. The centerpiece of the Summit is the dedicated time for structured planning on campus that leads to the development of a campus Momentum Plan.

- b. **DEAN AND DEPARTMENT CHAIR TRAINING** The USG will be offering training to Deans & Department Chairs (January 26 & 27) regarding the implementation of the new policies related to post-tenure review (PTR), annual evaluations, and the inclusion of student success as an element of faculty evaluation. The two-day training will cover some of the following topics:
  - i. Review of the new Board of Regents policy and the Academic Affairs Handbook
  - ii. Highlight and discuss the legal and human resource elements of the policies and its implementation
  - iii. Discuss implicit bias and opportunities to build trust
  - iv. Share best practices on faculty evaluations
  - v. Engage in case studies and the practical implementation of policies

# 7. FACULTY

# a. Fellowships and Grants

- i. **2023 Provost's Summer Research Fellows** The Office of the Provost recently announced the recipients of the 2023 Provost's Summer Research Fellows program:
  - 1. Hedy Fraunhofer, Professor, World Languages and Cultures Title: *Translating Plants-Literature, Philosophy, and the Climate Crisis*
  - 2. Juli Gittinger, Assistant Professor, Philosophy, Religion, and Liberal Studies

Title: American Apocalyptic

3. Matthew Milnes, Assistant Professor of Biology, Biological & Environmental Sciences *Title: Elucidating the Role of Testosterone in Early Development of the Reproductive System of Eastern Fence Lizards.* 

# b. Administrator and Faculty Searches

- i. Academic Leadership Searches The Office of the Provost recently launched two academic leadership searches: (1) Dean of the College of Education (Dr. Tenbus, Chair) and (2) Dean of the College of Health Sciences (Dr. Stratton, Chair).
- ii. Chair Searches Following national searches in the CoAS and CoBT, Eric Griffis, MFA, Professor of Theatre, was appointed as Chair for the Department of Theatre and Dance. Jeannie Pridmore, PhD will join the university as the next Chair of the Department of Information Systems and Computer Science. She currently serves as Professor of Management Information Systems and Director of the MIS Program at the Richards College of Business at the University of West Georgia.
- iii. **Director Search** The search for the next Executive Director for the Sandra Dunagan Deal Center for Early Language and Literacy is underway. The <u>posting</u> closes on February 4, 2023.
- c. <u>APPLICATION DEADLINES</u>
  - i. Academic Affairs Small Grants Program Application period is February 1 to February 16, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. For more information, please see the <u>Program Call for Submissions</u>.
    - 1. Grant amount: Up to \$5,000.00.
    - 2. Recipients announced: March 7, 2023.
    - 3. Award Lasts Until: November 1, 2023.

All funds must be expended by November 1, 2022. For assistance, contact the Center for Teaching and Learning at <u>ctl@gcsu.edu</u>, or call (478) 445-2520.

- ii. Affordable Learning Georgia Grants Deadline January 31, 2023. Affordable Learning Georgia, an initiative of the University System of Georgia focused on providing affordable course materials, recently released a Request for Proposals for Affordable Materials Grants. Applications are due by January 31, 2023. Two types of grants are available. More information can be found at: https://frontpage.gcsu.edu/node/12772.
- iii. Community-Based Engaged Learning Grants Application period is February 1 to February 16, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. Once the applicant has their materials ready to submit, please log into GeorgiaVIEW, click on the Self-Registration menu option, find the CbEL Grants Program course. Be sure to complete the self-registration for the course. Submission instructions and forms to upload your materials are in the course announcements. For more information, please see the <u>Program Call for Submissions</u>.
  - 1. Grant amount: Up to \$1,000.00
  - 2. Winners Announced: March 7, 2023
  - 3. Award Lasts Until: November 1, 2023

All funds must be expended by November 1, 2023. For assistance, contact the Center for Teaching and Learning at <u>ctl@gcsu.edu</u>, or call (478) 445-2520.

- iv. Inclusive Excellence Research Grants Application Period is February 1- February 16, 2023. The purpose of this grant program is to provide funding for Georgia College faculty to conduct research on topics regarding inclusive excellence in the discipline and beyond. For more information, please see the Program Announcement. For assistance, contact the Center for Teaching and Learning at <u>ctl@gcsu.edu</u>, or call (478) 445-2520.
  - 1. Grant amount: Up to \$4,000.00.
  - 2. Winners Announced: March 7, 2023.
  - 3. Award Lasts Until: November 1, 2023.

All funds must be expended by November 1, 2023. Please direct any and all questions to the Center for Teaching and Learning at ctl@gcsu.edu.

### 8. <u>Calendar</u>

- a. <u>GCSU RESEARCH DAY 2023</u> As Georgia College continues to focus on engaging the university community in various research activities, the GCSU Research Day is scheduled for March 29, 2023. This event will showcase the excellent scholarship and creative works being done by graduate and undergraduate students, as well as faculty, across the campus. The Graduate Research Showcase will also be a part of the GCSU Research Day. Please encourage your students to attend one of the presentations in support of their peers.
- b. <u>**THE RELIGIOUS OBSERVANCE**</u> policy was updated last semester. Students are required to complete and submit a Notification Form to each instructor, within the first week of class of the semester in which the observance occurs. You can find the form <u>here</u>.
- c. <u>SUMMER ORIENTATION</u> The Office of Admission plans to host Summer Orientations on the following Tuesdays and Thursdays in June and July:

- i. June 6 & June 8
- ii. June 13 & June 15
- iii. July 18 & July 20

#### COMMITTEE REPORTS

### 1. <u>Academic Policy Committee</u> (APC) — Sarah Myers, Chair

Officers: Chair Sarah Myers, Vice-Chair Benjamin "Chad" Whittle, Secretary David Zoetewey

#### a. <u>Review of Required Syllabus Statements</u>

- i. Reviewed for efficiency, the committee decided statements as written are clear and concise. There are no current recommendations for removal or combining of existing statements.
- ii. Reviewed for opportunities to incorporate diversity and inclusion language, the committee decided we need an overarching D&I statement from the university before considering if it is appropriate to include in a syllabus. The committee will continue to collaborate when appropriate with DEIPC on this effort.

## b. <u>Review of Student Academic Dishonesty Policy</u>

- i. Reviewed through the lens of artificial intelligence (AI) usage, the committee decided the policies as currently written ("presenting another's work as your own") encompasses the use of AI; however, the committee suggests including AI specific language for added clarity on the subject.
- ii. The committee suggests involving University Counsel to confirm legalities when making these policy adjustments.
- iii. An additional suggestion, not within the scope of APC, would be to make instructors aware this technology exists and offer suggestions for assignments that would render this tech unhelpful. Perhaps CTL can offer a workshop for something on this topic.

### 2. <u>Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Policy Committee (DEIPC)</u> — Linda Bradley, Chair

Officers: Chair Linda Bradley, Vice-Chair James Welborn, Secretary Liz Speelman

- a. <u>**REQUIRED SYLLABUS STATEMENT**</u> DEIPC members reviewed feedback from APC, Senate, and President Cox regarding a potential required syllabus statement addressing diversity, inclusion, and equity within classroom contexts. Next steps include:
  - i. Trae Welborn will synthesize feedback for a revised required syllabus statement. We will Utilize TEAMS to facilitate ongoing sharing and discussion of diversity statements from across Georgia College and responses to feedback regarding a common syllabus statement.
  - ii. Invite representatives from APC and SAPC to visit DEIPC for our February meeting to get a context of the dialogue shaping the goals and process of the development and potential next steps for governance.
- b. <u>COLLABORATION, COMMUNICATION, AND ACTION</u> We discussed the key components of collaboration and communication as well as authentic action.
- c. <u>SCOPE</u> Continued evolving exploration of the focus of DEIPC exploring the balance of policy creation vs. review of existing university policies in the lens of diversity, equity, and inclusion.

# 3. <u>Executive Committee of University Senate</u> (ECUS) — Jennifer Flory, Chair

Officers: Chair Jennifer Flory, Vice-Chair Rob Sumowski, Secretary Alex Blazer

- a. As Jennifer Flory had extended *Regrets* and was unable to attend this meeting, the following is the written report submitted by the chair for inclusion in these minutes.
- b. <u>Presiding Officer Activities</u>
  - i. <u>AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES 2023</u> <u>ANNUAL MEETING</u> Attended the conference focused on Reclaiming Liberal Education, January 18-20, San Francisco
  - ii. ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP TEAM MEETING, 12/8/22
  - iii. MONTHLY MEETING WITH PROVOST SPIROU, 12/19/22
    - 1. Academic Innovation Task Force update January 17, 2023, 9 am, President's Conference Room
    - 2. Thank you for assisting with and providing funding for the University Senate holiday gathering!
    - 3. Budget cuts update
    - 4. Policy discussions
      - a. Plagiarism policy update re: ChatGPT
        - i. Asked CTL to prepare workshops for dealing with ChatGPT.
        - ii. Supporting GC folks to prepare a workshop for CoPLAC institutions.
        - iii. Asked ECUS to ask APC to review current institutional policies on plagiarism/academic dishonesty and propose revisions to the policies which would address the use of artificial intelligence tools, such as ChatGPT, in academic work.
    - 5. Covid policies will stay as is for spring semester. After that, we will probably move to treat covid as other infectious diseases.
    - 6. Post-Tenure Review Pause Policy is in limbo.
    - 7. Amorous Relationships policy should come through FAPC and RPIPC as information items.
    - 8. Institutional Online Resource (IOR) Governance Policy should come through RPIPC as an information item.
- c. <u>GOVERNANCE CALENDAR 2023-2024</u> The calendar has been approved by Academic Affairs. ECUS will vote on it at our next meeting.

# d. UNIVERSITY SENATE BUDGET AND FOUNDATION UPDATES

- i. 1048105 University Senate (state account) has \$4,767.00.
- ii. F15320 University Senate (foundation) has \$263.79.

# 4. <u>SUBCOMMITTEE ON NOMINATIONS</u> (SCON) — ROB SUMOWSKI, CHAIR

Officers: Chair Rob Sumowski, Secretary Alex Blazer

a. <u>ELECTION OVERSIGHT</u> Each of the colleges' and University Library's election processes and constituency designations have been received and logged as per University Senate Bylaws. Information on the election procedures of CoAS,

CoHS, and the University Library have been received since our last ECUS meeting and are outlined below:

## i. College of Arts and Sciences

- 1. The elections for 2023-2024 Faculty Senators from the College of Arts and Sciences will be managed according to the college bylaws. All departments in the college will elect the necessary senators to replace those whose terms will end spring 2023 in accordance with their department policies. The dean's office has asked the departments to conduct and finalize elections so that we can provide the results to the Executive Committee no later than February 1, 2023.
- Apportionment in the college for 2022 is based on the number of department faculty and positions being filled, indicated as follows. Each department is allocated one senator; and typically, an additional senator is allocated to larger departments in order of number of faculty until the total matches the senate apportionment for the academic year.

2022-2023 CoAS Senate Representation	# Faculty	
Biological and Environmental	27	2
Government and Sociology	24	2
English	20	2
Chemistry, Physics, and Astronomy	16	2
Mathematics	17	1
History and Geography	15	1
Music	14	1
Communication	13	1
Psychology	11	1
World Languages and Cultures	11	1
Art	11	1
Philosophy, Religion, and Liberal	9	1
Theatre and Dance	6	1
Total	194	17

# ii. College of Health Sciences

1. Senate Election process

- a. Call for nominations/guidelines
  - i. Apportionment (COHS constituencies): All fulltime COHS faculty (including those recently hired, limited term or permanent faculty ranks, non-tenure track, tenure track or tenured) are eligible to nominate and are eligible to vote on the final ballot.
  - ii. To be eligible to serve as a Senate Representative, faculty must be a member of the GC corps of instruction and have completed at least two (2) years of service at Georgia College at the beginning of the fall semester following their election as an elected faculty senator.

- iii. Prior to nominating, approval must be received from the individual being nominated. Selfnominations are allowed. Each faculty member may nominate one person only (yourself counts as your one nomination).
- iv. A call for nominations email with the above guidelines is sent to COHS constituencies.Nominations are sent to julie.collis@gcsu.edu.
- v. Faculty will be given at least five business days to submit nominations. Periodic reminder emails will be sent. After nominations are received, the Dean's Office confirms the nominee's acceptance of the nomination. An online vote for the vacant Senate seat(s) is then held.
- b. Voting for Senators
  - i. An email is sent to all full-time COHS faculty who are eligible to vote (including those recently hired, limited term or permanent faculty ranks, non-tenure track, tenure track or tenured) with voting instructions, vote deadline, and a link to the online ballot.
  - ii. The online ballot lists the nominees from step one.Faculty will be given five business days to vote.Periodic reminder emails will be sent.
  - iii. After the vote deadline, results will be sent to COHS Dean, Dr. Noviello. The Dean will notify the winners.
  - iv. The results will be forwarded from the Dean's Office to the University Senate Executive Committee by Feb. 1.
- iii. <u>UNIVERSITY LIBRARY</u> The University Library has two senators. Neither seat will be up for re-election during the 2022-2023 school year. Election procedures: vacancies are filled by secret ballot distributed to all library faculty members annually by the 2nd Friday in December.
- b. <u>USG FACULTY COUNCIL</u> The USG Faculty Council met virtually in December for an update session on the progress of conversations with senior admin Dr. Ashwani Monga regarding faculty-requested changes to the latest USG tenure policy to allow a final level of faculty peer-led review prior to employee dismissal. Dr. Monga recorded our concerns and requests prior to his pending conversation with Chancellor Perdue. This is an ongoing dialogue, and I will brief Senate on any new developments.

# 5. FACULTY AFFAIRS POLICY COMMITTEE (FAPC) — SABRINA HOM, CHAIR

Officers: Chair Sabrina Hom, Vice-Chair Frank A. Richardson, Secretary Stephanie Jett

- a. <u>OPERATING PROCEDURES</u> The committee approved operating procedures for 2022-2023
- b. <u>**POST-TENURE REVIEW EXTENSION**</u> We voted to withdraw our previous motion regarding extensions to the PTR clock on the basis that existing Federal law

already offers comparable protections to employees on FMLA leave, deployed, etc.

- c. <u>POST-TENURE REVIEW DATA</u> Can we track the results of PTRs on the aggregate? For example, how many people are successful, how many people have PIPs, how many people are unsuccessful in their PIPs? During the ECUS meeting with Standing Committee Chairs, Provost Spirou stated the data would be made available.
- d. **<u>BOR POLICY 8.3 REVISIONS</u>** We checked in on the progress of revised assessment policies across the university and reviewed several examples from committee members.

### 6. <u>Resources, Planning, and Institutional Policy Committee</u> (RPIPC) — Brad Fowler, Vice-Chair

```
Officers: Chair Damian Francis, Vice-Chair Brad Fowler, Secretary Kerry James Evans
```

- a. <u>**PARKING POLICY</u>** The committee finalized a motion for review and update of the GCSU parking allocation policy.</u>
- b. **<u>BUDGET</u>** 
  - i. The committee discussed and drafted a motion for budget consideration to the BOR to provide funding to meet the shortfall in State appropriation resulting from the decision for GCSU to remained test required during Fall Freshman class of 2022. The motion is now being reviewed by the office of finance and administration and will be vetted by the office of the president before submission to the February ECUS and senate meetings.
  - ii. We tabled a discussion on whether the university administration should share the proposed strategy for addressing budget shortfall for FY24 as submitted to the BOR budget hearing in December with Deans and Department Chairs. There was a suggestion that administrators needed to share more about budget shortfalls, for example, the status of limited term lecturers.

## 7. <u>Student Affairs Policy Committee</u> (SAPC) — Gregory J. Glotzbecker, Chair

*Officers: Chair Gregory J. Glotzbecker, Vice-Chair Joyce Norris-Taylor, Secretary Kaitley Congdon* 

- a. <u>MEETING</u> SAPC had a meeting scheduled for 6 Jan 2023 from 2:00 p.m. to 3:15 p.m.
  - i. <u>NO REPORT</u> SAPC had no business to conduct, so its meeting was cancelled.
- 8. <u>STUDENT GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION</u> (SGA) KAITLEY CONGDON, PRESIDENT Officers: President Kaitley Congdon, Vice President Connor Hilly, Secretary Ellie Munson, Treasurer Axel Hawkins
  - a. <u>HOMECOMING ELECTIONS</u> are being held.
  - b. **WIFI** A student poll is being conducted regarding wifi location problems.

# **ANNOUNCEMENTS/INFORMATION ITEMS**

- 1. <u>University Curriculum Committee (UCC) Update</u> Lyndall Muschell, Chair
  - a. <u>NO REPORT</u> As Graduate Council, General Education Committee, and University Curriculum Committee had not all met prior to today's University Senate meeting, there is no report.

**OPEN DISCUSSION** Rob Sumowski invited open discussion from the floor. There was none.

### <u>Adjourn</u>

- 1. <u>ATTENDANCE AND THE SIGN-IN SHEET</u> Alex Blazer requested that each individual present at the meeting sign the university senator attendance sheet or guest sign-in sheet on their way out if they hadn't already signed in.
- 2. <u>NEXT UNIVERSITY SENATE MEETING</u> is scheduled for Friday, 24 Feb 2023 at 3:30 p.m. in Arts & Sciences 272.
- 3. <u>MOTION TO ADJOURN</u> As there was no further business, a motion to adjourn was made, seconded, and approved. The meeting was adjourned at 4:34 p.m.

## **SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS**

1. There are no supporting documents.